
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 
 
 
CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        MICHAEL CHRISTENSON 
COUNCIL LIAISON     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG 
DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN 
 
         
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from May 23, 2016, Joint Meeting of the City Council and 

Planning Commission Meeting 
 

4. Citizen’s Forum 
 

5. Public Hearings 
 
6. Unfinished Business 

a. 11103 River Road NE – Amendment to Conditional Use Permit for Outdoor 
Storage 

b. Consideration of Amendments to the Performance Standards for Construction 
of Single Family Dwellings 

 
7. New Business 

 
8. Reports and Announcements 

a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 
 
 
 



CITY OF HANOVER 
JOINT MEETING OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAY 23, 2016 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the May 23, 2016, the Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning Commission to order at 7:28 pm after 
the Special Council Meeting.  Council members present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, John Vajda, Jim Zajicek, and Doug 
Hammerseng.  Planning Commission members present were Stan Kolasa, Michelle Armstrong, Dean Kuitunen, and Mike 
Christenson.  Also present were City Administrator Brian Hagen, City Planner Cindy Nash, and Administrative Assistant Amy 
Biren.  Also present:  Krysta Mitchell, Clark Lee, Cassandra Vajda, and Stephanie Gleason.  Absent:  Councilor Ken Warpula, 
Planning Commissioner Jim Schendel, and City Engineer Justin Messner. 
 
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Armstrong to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Kuitunen.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the March 28, 2016, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Armstrong to approve the March 28, 2016, minutes as presented, seconded by Kuitunen.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 Clark Lee, 525 Kadler Avenue:  Expressed his concerns regarding the lack of minimum floor area requirements for 
new construction of single family dwellings.  He had attended the Council Meeting on May 3, 2016, as well.  He voiced his 
concerns about garages increasing in size and overshadowing the actual homes.  He thanked the Council for putting into effect 
a moratorium on building footprints which took place at the prior Special Council Meeting tonight.  Lee would like the standards 
to be reviewed and revert to those prior to the 2013 Re-codification. 
 
Public Hearing 
 None 
 
Unfinished Business 
Biren informed that the Conditional Use Permit Amendment regarding Rhino Imported Auto Parts has been postponed until the 
June meeting as the surveyor was unable to survey the property until last week and this delay impacted the site plan drawings.  
Nash has received official notice asking for an extension. 
 
New Business 
Consideration of Amendments to the Performance Standards for Construction of Single Family Dwellings 
 
Biren presented information on current standards compared to those used prior to 2013 (see attached chart).  The major 
differences were in the area of minimum floor area per house type, materials used, driveways, and garages.  Staff answered 
questions from Council and Planning Commission members to further clarify these comparisons and the history of the 2013 Re-
codification. 
 
Krysta Mitchell asked if redlined copies of the changes made during the 2013 Re-codification were kept.  Nash explained that 
since there are so many changes and moving sections around during a process of re-codification, that redlining is difficult and 
distracting. 
 
Mayor Kauffman stated that the major issue appears to be the right sized homes for Hanover and that the Planning Commission 
would need to look at the sizes and how standards would be determined. 
 
Vajda asked Armstrong about the size of home from a realtor’s point of view.  Armstrong replied that she needed more time to 
compare the past and present standards and fully understand them from a planning perspective. 
 
Christenson inquired about how the terms footprint versus floor area are used and if they mean different things.  Nash replied 
that many cities do not have a specific minimums and that the terms are defined differently.  Footprint means the outside 
dimensions and floor area is calculating the space used, but not that space considered “dead” like walls. 



 
Hammerseng asked Armstrong what terms are used in real estate when listing homes.  Armstrong replied that foundation size 
(footprint) and the finished square footage.  She said that footprint is what really matters and gave several examples of new 
construction homes for sale in Hanover and their foundation sizes (taken from her realty website). 
 
Vajda wanted to know what the process would be for a new development, specifically the undeveloped part of Crow River 
Heights.  Nash said that a new developer would have to start from scratch with a new preliminary plat and go from there.  She 
also explained that a Planned Unit Development (PUD) may vary from standards in place if approved by Council, but that a 
PUD is not a guarantee and developers do not want to take the risk.  Some of the bigger developers wouldn’t look at Hanover 
as a possible place to build because they wouldn’t want to deal with restrictions. 
 
The Planning Commission will review the general requirements, the building materials, the garage size, the garage frontage, and 
the minimum building sizes.  Minimum building sizes and garages will be discussed at the June meeting. 
 
MOTION: 
Vajda moved to close the Council portion of the Joint Meeting, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried unanimously.  Council 
closed at 8:20 pm. 
 
Planning Commission members continued the discussion regarding standards.  Nash recalled that prior to the 2013 changes, 
garages were having to be designed as tandem garages in order to meet the size requirements.  Hammerseng stated that Hanover 
was being hurt by the restrictions of that time period and it was decided to pull away from them.  Builders were also having 
difficulties meeting the standards and getting product.  Kolasa agreed with this.  Christenson asked if there were definitions of 
the types of houses that were referenced in the ordinance prior to 2013.  Nash said that was something that would need to be 
talked about and put either in definitions or the building standards. 
 
Reports and Announcements 
Staff: 
Biren said that there has been 13 new construction permits since the first of the year and two more are waiting pick up.  There 
has been a lot of deck permits this year.  The City Cemetery is being mapped by Cemetery Updating Services out of Winona, 
MN.  They have measured out the Cemetery and located all of the existing graves/head stones and determined if each grave was 
occupied or not.  How the back area of the Cemetery will be plotted still needs to be decided before the project is completed. 
 
Hagen accompanied WSB on the Historic Bridge inspection and there is only one item that needs to be taken care of—finish 
putting concrete near the abutment and the beam on which the Bridge rests.  Another project is the comprehensive plan will go 
to Council for scope of work.  Also working towards putting together an informational packet for potential developers. 
 
Nash informed the Board that FEMA has issued new floodplain maps along with updating floodplain management.  These maps 
will need to be approved by November of this year. 
 
Council Liaison 
Hammerseng reviewed the concerns expressed by citizens regarding new ballfield design and the necessity to remove trees in 
order for the redesign.  At that same Council meeting, the topic of bonding for the new Public Works building merged into 
looking at the best use of the land and possibilities of locating it on other City property.  Also, the Foxtailers Snowmobile Club 
approached Council with a possible covering for the Historic Bridge, but no decision was made. 
 
Planning Commission 
Christenson asked how shipping containers fit in with the City Code and suggested that this be reviewed at a future meeting.  
Hagen responded that according to the accessory building ordinance, the building must fit in with the surroundings, so a shipping 
container would not be allowed. 
 
Kuitunen asked about silt fence enforcement and how a new construction property on Erin Street does not put the fence back up 
after contractors have worked.  Biren said that she and Terry Hagstrom, Metro West, have been working together to make sure 
erosion controls are in place.  There was one day when eight sites had stop work orders because silt fencing and rock driveways 
were not in place in additional to not cleaning the dirt off of the streets.  The sites complied and the stop work orders were lifted. 
 
Armstrong asked if anyone new about the JP Brooks property in Crow River Heights that was for sale.  It had been the focus of 
a wetland variance last year.  Hagen said that the variance had been withdrawn with the plans to build a house on the lot that 
would meet the setbacks.  It was assumed that this was still the goal. 



 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Armstrong to adjourn, seconded by Christenson. Motion carried unanimously. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:47 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Performance Standard Current Ordinance 2011 Ordinance 

Minimum Lot Area Interior:  12,000 sq. ft. 12,000 sq. ft. 
 Corner:  15,000 sq. ft. Corner:  15,000 sq. ft 

Minimum Lot Width 80 feet 80 feet 

 
 
 
Minimum Lot Depth 

 
 
 

No current regulation 

 
 
20 foot buffer and screening if adjacent to 
powerlines, pipe lines, rail ROW, road ROW 

 
Maximum Building Height 

 
2.5 stories or 35 feet 

 
 2.5 stories or 30 feet   

whichever is less 

Minimum Building Height  14 feet    

Front yard setback 30 feet 30 feet 

Side yard setback 10 feet 10 feet 

Side yard on Corner Lot Same as Front yard setback Front yard setback 
abutting street   prior to 1982:  15 feet   

Rear yard setback 30 feet 30 feet 

Arterial road setback 50 feet 50 feet 

Collector road setback 45 feet 45 feet 

Wetland setback 30 feet 30 feet 

Bluff setback (top of bluff) 30 feet 30 feet 

GD and RD waters setback 75 feet 75 feet 

NE waters setback 200 feet 200 feet 

 Impervious coverage in shoreland   25% 30% 

Minimum garage size 576 sq. ft. 576 sq. ft. 

 
Driveway regulations 

 
Minimum width 10 feet 

 
Vertical slope not to exceed 10% 

 Maximum width 28 feet 
located between the curb cut 
and property line. 

 
Minimum slope of 18 inches above top of curb 
or street where no curb 

 No closer than 5 ft from side 
or rear lot line. 

 
Corner clearance:  30 feet 

Access point restrictions 
Corner clearance:  30 feet 



 

Building Standards Current Ordinance  2011 Ordinance 

Foundation Concrete  Frost footings 
Concrete block, concrete or approved 
equivalent 

Minimum Dwelling Width 24 feet  24 feet 

Roof Pitch and Materials 5:12  5:12 
Composition, shingled, 
tiled or metal 

 
Brick or Stone 

   
20% front facade covered with brick or stone 

   Stucco house:  10% 
    
 
 

Materials 

Framing materials to 
withstand high winds and 
storms. 

  

    
 

Garage Frontage 
  No more than 40% of building width is garage 

doors 
   Side or rear loaded are exempt. 
    

Size--Minimum floor area using   Rambler:  1260 sq. ft. 
outside building dimensions   1.5 Story:  1092 sq. ft. 

   Split Foyer/Entry:  1248 sq. ft. 
   Split 3 level min:  1248 sq. ft. 
   Two Story:  1040 sq. ft. 
   W/O Basement:  add 100 sq. ft for utilities. 

 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
PO Box 251 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 
Date: June 23, 2016 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Rhino Imported Auto Conditional Use Permit 

Overview of Request  

The subject property is currently zoned B-1 (Downtown River Business District) and 
an application has been received for an amendment to the existing Conditional Use 
Permit.   The property is located at 11103 River Road.   

The application is included in your packets and contains their proposed request.  A 
copy of the minutes from the 1991 public hearing and the Special Use Permit are also 
included in the packet. 

Evaluation of Request 

The applicant is seeking permission to change the existing permit to allow for a 25’ x 
95’ fenced exterior storage area at the south side of the building.  That area will store 
larger auto parts and business equipment such as the forklift.   

Open and outdoor storage is not permitted in the B-1 District. 

The shoreland management overlay district requires a 75-foot setback. The existing 
building does not meet that setback, but is grandfathered in.  New structures or 
additions to existing structures would be required to meet the setback. 

Parking areas in the shoreland management overlay district should meet the 75-foot 
setback when feasible and practical, but shall not be less than 50 feet from the 
ordinary high water level. The proposed parking area meets the 50-foot requirement.  
The Zoning Ordinance requires that parking areas shall be of a durable and dustless 
surface such as asphalt or cement. 

Portions of the property are within both the existing floodplain and the new proposed 
floodplain.  Parts of this property are located within the Special Flood Hazard Area. 

 



Rhino Auto 

6/23/2016  2 

 

 

The applicant provided an extension for the review time frame to August 31, 2016 as 
per the attached letter. 

Recommendation 

If the Planning Commission is inclined to approve the application, then I would 
recommend the following conditions:     

1.  The previous Conditional Use Permit is revoked. 

2. The property shall operate conformance with the Site Plan prepared by 
Otto Associates with the following exceptions: 

3. No outside storage is permitted.  The area shown on the Site Plan as 
“Proposed Fenced Storage Area” is not allowed. 

4. The expanded parking is permitted in the location shown as “Proposed 
Gravel” but must be paved instead of gravel.   If it is not paved, then no 
parking may occur in this area. 

5. Outside storage is not permitted.  Any vehicles parked outside must be operable 
and have current license plates.  Any vehicles that are not operable or do not 
have current license plates would be considered outside storage and are not 
permitted. 



Rhino Auto 

6/23/2016  3 

 
6. The use shall maintain compliance with all noise and nuisance related 

ordinances of the City Code, as may be amended from time to time. 
 

7. The use and site shall be in compliance with any Federal, State or County law 
or regulation that is applicable and any related permits shall be obtained and 
documented to the City. 

 
8. The property shall remain in substantial conformance with all performance 

standards contained within the City Zoning Ordinance and City Code. 

9. The owner shall, upon reasonable advance notice, provide City staff and/or its 
agents with access to the property for inspection for compliance with this 
Conditional Use Permit and other relevant codes. 

 







































Buildable Area Definition 

 

 

Hanover   The portion of the lot above the ordinary high watermark and  
    exclusive of restrictive soils, wetlands, slopes in excess of twelve  
    (12) percent, and significant natural or unique resources to be  
    protected or conserved. 

 

Rockford   The space remaining on a lot after minimum setback and open 
    space requirements have been met and excluding easements. 



Building Footprint Definition 

 

Orono    The outline of the total area covered by a building’s perimeter at  
    ground level (to the block/foundation). 
 
    Carports, covered porches and other similar building features  
    having no exterior walls shall be included by drawing a straight  
    line between outer edges of all support structures. 
 
    Outer edges of building protrusions, bay windows or other similar  
    features that extend outward from a building and are less than  
    four (4) feet from the ground are included. 
 
 
Rogers    The length and width of the building’s foundation. 



Floor Area Definition 

Hanover   The sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of the  
    building or portion thereof devoted to a particular use, including  
    accessory storage areas located within selling or working space  
    and including any basement floor area devoted to retailing  
    activities, to the production or processing of goods, or to business 
    or professional offices. 
 
    However, the floor areas shall not include basement floor area  
    other than area devoted to retailing activities, the production or  
    processing of goods, or to business or professional offices. 
 
Albertville   The sum of the gross horizontal areas of several floors of the  
    building or portion thereof devoted to a particular use, including 
    accessory storage area located within selling or working space  
    such as retailing activities, the production or processing of goods,  
    or to business or professional offices. 
 
    Shall not include:  basement or cellar floor area other than area  
    devoted to retailing activities, the production or processing of  
    goods, or to business or professional offices. 
 
    Shall not include cellar area in residences. 
 
Corcoran   The sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of the  
    building measured from the exterior faces of the exterior walls or  
    from the centerline of walls separating two buildings. 
 
    The floor area of a building shall include basement floor area,  
    penthouses, attic space having headroom of 7 feet or more,  
    interior balconies and mezzanines, lean-tos, enclosed porches and 
    floor area devoted to accessory uses. 
 
    Any space devoted to mechanical equipment, stairwells, elevator 
    shafts, parking or loading shall not be included in floor area for  
    purposes of parking calculations. 
 
Medina – Hamel  The sum of the horizontal areas of several floors of a building, as  
    measured to the outer surface of exterior walls. 
 
 
Rogers    The gross area of the main floor of a residential building   
    measured in square feet and not an attached garage, breezeway,  
    or similar attachment. 
 
 
St. Michael   The floor area of a building is the sum of the gross horizontal  
    areas of the several floors of the building, measured from the  
    exterior faces of the exterior walls. 
 



Floor Area, Gross, Definition 

 

Rockford   The sum of the gross horizontal areas of several floors of the  
    building or portion thereof devoted to a particular use, including  
    accessory storage area located within selling or working space  
    such as retailing activities, the production or processing of goods,  
    or to business or professional offices. 
 
    Shall not include:  basement or cellar floor area other than area  
    devoted to retailing activities, the production or processing of  
    goods, or to business or professional offices. 
 
    Shall not include cellar area in residences. 
 
 
Rogers    The sum or the gross of the various floors of a building measured  
    in square feet. 
 
    The basement floor area shall not be included unless it constitutes 
    a story.  



Floor Area Ratio Definition 

 

Orono    The total building floor area divided by total lot area. 
 
 
Rogers    The numerical value obtained through dividing the gross floor  
    area of a building or buildings by the net area of the lot or parcel  
    of land on which such building or buildings are located. 



Garage Definition 

 

Hanover    An accessory building or accessory portion of the principal  
     building which is intended for and used to store the  
     private passenger vehicles of the families resident upon  
     the premises. 
 
Albertville    An accessory building or accessory portion of the principal  
     building which is intended for and used to store the  
     private passenger vehicles and trucks not exceeding  
     12,000 pounds gross weight, of the family or families  
     resident upon the premises, and which no business service 
     or industry is carried on. 
 
Corcoran    A detached accessory building or an attached accessory  
     portion of the principal building which is intended for and  
     used to store the private passenger vehicles of the family  
     or families who reside upon the premises and in which no  
     occupation or business for profit is carried on, and   
     enclosed on all four sides and pierced only by windows  
     and customary doors.  
 
Medina – Hamel   An accessory building or accessory portion of the principal  
     building, which it is for and used to store the private  
     passenger vehicles of the family or families resident upon  
     the premises. 
 
Orono     A detached accessory building or portion of the principal  
     building, including a carport, which is used primarily for  
     storing passenger vehicles, trailers, or one truck of a rated  
     capacity of not more than 1.5 tons. 
 
Rockford    An accessory building or accessory portion of the principal  
     building which is intended for and used to store the  
     private passenger vehicles and non-commercial trucks not  
     exceeding 12,000 pounds gross weight, of the family or  
     families resident upon the premises, and in which no  
     business, service or industry is carried on unless   
     specifically authorized. 
 
Rogers     A detached one-story accessory building or portion of the  
     principal building, including a carport, which is used  
     primarily for the storing of passenger vehicles, trailers or  
     farm trucks. 
 
St. Michael    An accessory building designed or used for the storage of  
     automotive, motor-driven vehicles owned and used by the 
     occupants of the building to which it is accessory. 



Habitable Space Definition 

 

Medina – Hamel   A space in a building for living, sleeping, eating, or cooking. 
 
     Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility  
     spaces and similar areas are not considered habitable  
     spaces. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wall Area Calculations Definition 
 
 

Albertville    The total wall area of structures shall be calculated by  
     taking the total solid surface area:  exterior surfaces  
     including any portion of overhead garage doors with  
     windows, but excluding all other windows or doors. 



  Albertville Lot Standards 
   

Minimum Lot Area  15,000 sq. ft. 
  No sewer:  10 acres 
   
   
Minimum Lot Width  Interior:  100 feet 
  Corner:  120 feet 
   
   
Minimum Lot Depth   
   
   
Front yard setback  30 feet 
   
   
   
   
   
Side yard setback  Interior:  10 feet 
  Corner:  20 feet 
   
   
Rear yard setback  Principal building:  25 feet 
  Accessory building:  10 feet minimum (not in easement) 
   
   
Impervious Surface   
   
   
   
   
   
Maximum Lot 
Coverage  Combined structures shall 
     occupy no more than 25% 
   

 



  Albertville Design Standards 
   

Minimum floor area  2 bedroom:  960 sq. ft. above ground 
  3 bedroom:  1040 sq. ft. above ground 
   
Maximum building height  Principal building:  35 feet 
  Accessory building:  16 feet 
   
Minimum Length  30 feet 
   
Minimum Width  24 feet 
   
Foundation  Continuous perimeter to code 
   
Roof Pitch  Not indicated in ordinance. 
   
Minimum Roof Overhang  12 inches 
   
Roof Materials  Earth covered, composition, shingle or tiled 
   
Exterior Finishes  Brick, natural stone, decorative concrete block, cast/precast 
    concrete panels, wood (cedar, redwood, cypress), curtain 
    wall panels (steel, fiberglass, aluminum), glass curtain wall 
    panels, stucco, vinyl 
   
Side and Rear Facades  Front and back have appropriate levels of formality. Front more 
    formal treatment with trash/recycling, play equipment and  
    outdoor storage in back. 
  Varied and articulated facades 
  Prohibit long blank walls and series of garage doors. 
   
Garage Size  2 enclosed spaces per unit 
  Minimum size of 480 sq. ft. 
   
Garage Frontage  Series of garage doors is prohibited. 
   
Driveway Regulations  Designed for parking two vehicles tandem 
  Maximum 24 feet wide at the curb 
  Minimum of 5 feet from side lot lines 
  Grade allowed 2% to 10% 
  Access minimum 40 feet from intersection of two or more streets 
  Surfaced with bitumen or concrete to control dust/drainage 
   
Utilities  Underground where required. 
   
   
   

 



   Corcoran Lot Standards 
    

Minimum Lot Area   20,000 sq. ft. 
    
    
    
Minimum Lot Width   100 feet 
    
    
    
Minimum Lot Depth    
    
    
Front yard setback   40 feet 
   100 feet from major road 
    
    
    
    
Side yard setback   Living:  10 feet 
   Garage:  5 feet 
    
    
Rear yard setback   30 feet 
    
    
    
Impervious Surface    
    
    
    
    
    
Maximum Lot 
Coverage    
     
    

 



    Corcoran Design Standards 
   

Minimum floor area  1100 sq. ft. 
   
Maximum building height  35 feet 
   
Minimum Length  Not indicated in ordinance. 
   
Minimum Width  24 feet 
   
Foundation  Maximum 18 inches exposed 
   
Roof Pitch  Not indicated in ordinance. 
   
Minimum Roof Overhang  12 inches 
   
Roof Materials  asphalt or wood shingles, concrete, clay, ceramic tile, steel 
   
Exterior Finishes  2 different materials required 
  Can be all brick 
  Minimum 50% natural materials:  brick, stone, stucco, hardiboard 
    redwood, cedar 
  Varied designs from minimum 5 styles  
  Homes in proximity cannot be alike 
   
Side and Rear Facades  Equal architectural treatment on all sides including accents 
  Each side elevation have at least one window or door opening 
   
Garage Size  One stall garage 
   
Garage Frontage  Maximum 55% of viewable ground floor linear building frontage 
  Entire garage structure is measured, not only garage doors 

  
Architecturally matching exterior of home 

  Site plan provides for location of one stall attached garage whether 
    or not it is constructed. 
   
Driveway Regulations  Minimum 22 feet in length 
  Maximum 2640 feet in length 
  Serves dwelling that has use of two-stall garage 
   
Utilities  Located underground 
   

 



    Medina/Hamel Lot Standards 
     

Minimum Lot Area    11,000 sq. ft. 
     
     
     
Minimum Lot Width    90 feet 
     
     
     
Minimum Lot Depth    100 feet 
     
     
Front yard setback    25 feet 
     
     
     
     
     
Side yard setback    25 feet combined total for both sides--neither 
     less than 10 feet 
     
Rear yard setback    30 feet 
     
     
     
Impervious Surface    Maximum 40% of total lot area 
     
Maximum Lot 
Coverage     
      
     
     
     
     
     
     

 



  Medina/Hamel Design Standards 
   

Minimum floor area  550 sq. ft. habitable floor space 
    Measured from inside of the interior wall surface. 
    Interior partitions not considered. 
   
Maximum building height  32 feet 
  2.5 stories with limitation of 2 stories facing street 
  Ground to eave:  30 feet maximum 
   
Minimum Length  24 feet--Measured from outside of exterior siding or fascia 
   
Minimum Width  24 feet--Measured from outside of exterior siding or fascia 
   
Foundation  Meets MN building code 
  Securely bolted in place, water tight 
   
Roof Pitch   
   
Minimum Roof Overhang   
   
Roof Materials   
   
Exterior Finishes  Durable 
  Consistent with codes, regulations, and industry standards 
   
Side and Rear Facades   
   
Garage Size  Minimum capacity of two vehicles 
   
Garage Frontage  If garage doors occupy more than half of the horizontal building  

  

  facade, architectural elements are required to break up monotony 
Front load garage:  30 foot set back 
Side load garage:  20 foot set back 

 
  

Driveway Regulations  24 feet maximum at curb 
  28 feet maximum at property line 
  No tree, shrub, obstruction adjacent 
  Bituminous, concrete or permeable pavers 
  No closer than 5 feet to side/rear lot line 
   
Utilities  Underground 
   

 



     Orono Lot Standards 
      

Minimum Lot Area     0.5 acre (R-1B)=21,780 sq. ft. 
     1 acre (R-1A)=43,560 sq. ft. 
     SFR:  15,000 sq. ft. 
      
Minimum Lot Width     100 feet (R-1B) 
     140 feet (R-1A) 
     SFR:  90 feet at setback line 
      
Minimum Lot Depth     Not indicated in ordinance. 
     SFR:  125 feet 
      
Front yard setback     30 feet (R-1B) 
     35 feet (R-1A) 
     SFR Interior:  25 feet 
     SFR Corner:  35 feet 
     SFR Collector/Arterial:  50 feet 
      
Side yard setback     10 feet (R-1A and R-1B) 
     Streetside:  15 feet (R-1B) 
     Streetside:  35 feet (R-1A) 
      
Rear yard setback     30 feet (R-1A and R-1B) 
     SFR:  40 feet or 20% of depth of lot, whichever 
       is less 
      
Impervious Surface      
      
      
      
      
      
Maximum Lot 
Coverage      
       
      
      

 



  Orono Design Standards 
   

Minimum floor area  Floor Area Ratio:  Total building floor area / Total lot area 
  Low/Med. Density:  0.5 FAR maximum 
  High Density:  1.0 FAR maximum (in excess of 6 units per acre) 
   
Maximum building height  2.5 stories 
  30 feet maximum 
   
Minimum Length   
   
Minimum Width  20 feet for at least 50% of depth 
   
Foundation  Permanent conforming to code 
   
Roof Pitch   
   
Minimum Roof Overhang   
   
Roof Materials   
   
Exterior Finishes  Prohibited:  concrete panels, concrete block, unfinished metal 
   
Side and Rear Facades   
   
Garage Size  Minimum 20 x 24 feet (480 sq. ft.) 
   
Garage Frontage   
   
Driveway Regulations  Maximum 20 feet wide 
  Bituminous, concrete, blacktop, or equivalent paving 
  Corner setback:  100 feet 

 
  

Utilities  Underground 
   

 



      Rockford Lot Standards 
       

Minimum Lot Area      14,500 sq. ft. 
       
       
       
Minimum Lot Width      Interior:  90 feet 
      Corner:  110 feet 
       
       
Minimum Lot Depth      120 feet 
       
       
Front yard setback      30 feet 
      35 feet if facing ROW 
      50 feet from arterial street 
       
       
       
Side yard setback      15 feet 
       
       
       
Rear yard setback      25 feet 
      50 feet from arterial street 
       
       
Impervious Surface      30% 
       
       
       
       
       
Maximum Lot 
Coverage       
        
       

 



   Rockford Design Standards 
    

Minimum floor area    
    
Maximum building height   35 feet 
    
Minimum Length    
    
Minimum Width   22 feet 
    
Foundation   Concrete or wood 
    
Roof Pitch    
    
Minimum Roof Overhang    
    
Roof Materials    
    
Exterior Finishes   Brick, natural stone, decorative concrete block, precast concrete, 
     wood, glass curtain wall panels, stucco, vinyl, curtain wall panels 
     of steel, fiberglass, aluminum 
    
Side and Rear Facades    
    
Garage Size    
    
Garage Frontage    
    
    
    
    
 
 

   

    
Driveway Regulations   Maximum 8% grade 
   Maximum 24 feet wide at curb 
   Minimum of 5 feet from side yard lot line 
   Allowed one access 
   Surfaced with materials to control dust and drainage 
   Unobstructed visibility required 
    
Utilities    

 



    Rogers Lot Standards 
     

Minimum Lot Area    10,000 sq. ft. 
     
     
     
Minimum Lot Width    80 feet 
     
     
     
Minimum Lot Depth     
     
     
Front yard setback    30 feet 
     
     
     
     
     
Side yard setback    Interior:  10 feet 
    Street:  same as front yard 
     
     
Rear yard setback    30 feet 
     
     
     
Impervious Surface     
     
     
     
     
     
Maximum Lot 
Coverage     
      
     

 



   Rogers Design Standards 
    

Minimum floor area    
    
Maximum building height   35 feet 
    
Minimum Length   30 feet 
    
Minimum Width   17 feet 
    
Foundation   Concrete 
    
Roof Pitch   5:12 minimum 
    
Minimum Roof Overhang    
    
Roof Materials    
    
Exterior Finishes   Withstand damage from high winds and storms 
    
Side and Rear Facades    
    
Garage Size    
    
Garage Frontage    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
    

Driveway Regulations   5 feet from side/rear lot line 
   Minimum 10 feet wide 

   
Strong enough to support fire and emergency 
vehicles 

Utilities    
    

 



    St. Michael Lot Standards 
     

Minimum Lot Area    R-1:  11,250 sq. ft. 
    R-2:  20,000 sq. ft. 
     
     
Minimum Lot Width    Interior:  90 feet 
    Corner:  100 feet 
     
     
Minimum Lot Depth    120 feet 
     
     
Front yard setback    30 feet 
     
     
     
     
     
Side yard setback    Non-garage:  10 feet 
    Garage:  7.5 feet not abutting ROW 
      
     
Rear yard setback    30 feet 
     
     
     
Impervious Surface    35% House/accessory structures 
    50% combined above and impervious (driveway, 
     sidewalk, patios) 
    40% maximum of front yard  
     
Maximum Lot 
Coverage    50% combined total 
      
     

 



St. Michael Design Standards 

Minimum Above ground floor 
area 

R-1:  850 feet excludes garage and foyer, with a minimum of 
three (3) habitable rooms 
R-2:  1000 feet excludes garage and foyer, with a minimum of 
three (3) habitable rooms 

Maximum building height 35 feet 

Minimum Length 24 feet 

Minimum Width 24 feet at narrowest point 

Foundation 

Roof Pitch 4:12 minimum 

Minimum Roof Overhang 

Roof Materials 

Exterior Finishes Maintain a high standard of architectural and aesthetic 
   compatibility with surrounding properties. 
Cannot be constructed of steel, iron, sheet aluminum, 
   corrugated aluminum or plain, flat, unpainted concrete 

Side and Rear Facades Not applicable 

Garage Size 400 sq. ft. minimum 
Minimum interior width:  18 feet 

Garage Frontage Maximum facing ROW:  40 feet 
Living area frontage minimum 50% of width of attached 
  garage 

Driveway Regulations 5 feet from side lot lines 
Slope between 2 and 10% 

    Two enclosed parking spaces 

Brick, concrete, bituminous 
Park only on driveway 
Off-drive parking area options 

Utilities Public sewer required 



Summary of Information from Michelle Armstrong

Direct link (includes photos):
http://matrix.northstarmls.com/DE.asp?k=563358XCDbC&p=DE-168054545-95

Status Address Price Style Footage
Sold 531 Kayla Lane $323,500.00 Two Story 2,821

Sold 625 Kadler Avenue $305,600.00 Two Story 2,113

Sold 1030 Emerald $298,824.00 Two Story 1,947

Sold 565 Kayla Lane $296,304.00 Two Story 1,785

Sold 591 Kayla Lane $285,000.00 Two Story 2,050

Pending 545 Kayla Lane $331,082.00 Two Story 2,018

Pending 11606 8th Street $289,900.00 Two Story 1,982

For Sale 675 Kadler Circle $270,900.00 Two Story 1,743

http://matrix.northstarmls.com/DE.asp?k=563358XCDbC&p=DE-168054545-95


















6/11/16 

To: The Hanover Council and Staff 

From: Daniel Boman Counselor Realty 

 

Thank you Chris for giving me a call this past week to discuss the city building 
moratorium that was put in place on May 24 2016. I am not certain why there 
were complaints/concerns made in regards to the homes that we are currently 
building in Hanover or the rejection of a sold home at 11586 11th street when 
Drake Construction applied for the permit when this home plan had been 
acceptable to the city 3 times before.  

This home plan which we call the Vancouver is a more modern 3 level design that 
is cost efficient to build with the bedroom level built up over the garage. When 
this home was designed extra attention was given to the front elevation for more 
curb appeal and it offers almost 1400 square feet finished on the first 2 floors. It 
by no means is lessen the values of homes in the city as I was told the complaint 
was. This design fits for the buyers moving out to Hanover from the inner city who 
like different levels of space instead of the same old split entry type home that 
has been built for many years. 

Our current model home in Schendels Field is a Vancouver plan at 1035 Emerald 
Street. It is 3 bedrooms, 3 baths with a finished family room and is priced at 
$267,000.00 with almost 1900 sq ft finished. It sold in a few days after Drake 
completed it and it closes June 27th. When this home is finished out by the buyers 
with a deck, irrigation, yard and all the other new home needs it will close to a 
$300K home. 

Next we built the same plan at 11574 11th Street which closed March 31 2016 at a 
price of $247,554.00 with just a bath finished on the 3rd level. We also built a 
Vancouver plan at 1044 Emerald Street that closed March 2 2016 at a price of 
$244,323.00 which had no finishing in the lower level. 



In talking with Chris he felt it might be beneficial for you members to see the 
property first hand and I would like to offer a time before this home closes at the 
end of the month for the council and staff members to come view the model 
home at 1035 Emerald Street so you can see how nice of a home plan it is. Please 
talk it over and let me know when a good time might be. 

We are currently building this home plan in Delano, Otsego, Zimmerman and Big 
Lake without any valuation or footprint issues. On this type of plan you have to 
take into consideration the square footage that is up over the garage also since it 
is part of the finished home, not just the footprint. If you go visit the big box 
corporate builders they have all designed and are building home with a big 
percentage of the homes living space up over the garage because they can 
provide more finished square feet to the buyer at a better value.  

Chris had also mentioned the revised square footage change on 2 stories needing 
to be 1040 on the foot print which seems high to me. We just closed a 2 story 
home in Schendels Field at 1030 Emerald Street which had a 960 sq ft footprint 
that sold for $298,000.00 with no finished basement yet. We had a buyer 
interested in reproducing that home and we were of course were unable to now 
with the 1040 sq ft rules. How can anyone be concerned about lessen city home 
values with a sales price of almost $300K. Buyers with the ability to spend $300K 
or more are going to stay closer into the cities rather than have the added 
commute from Hanover each day to work and shopping.  

I will plan on attending the planning commission meeting on June 23rd to give my 
input on future building requirements. If anyone has any questions or would like 
to talk with me further I have provided my cell phone number below. 

 

Thanks for your time, 

Daniel Boman 

612-801-8925 

 




	6-27-16 Agenda
	UCHAIRU           UBOARD MEMBERSU
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	MICHAEL CHRISTENSON
	UCOUNCIL LIAISONU     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG
	DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN


	5-23-16 Minutes - Draft
	Adjournment
	ATTEST:

	comments pc june2016 rhino
	16-0249 CS&TS 5-25-16
	Previous Rhino
	City Standards for Packet
	Definitions
	Buildable Area Definition
	Building Footprint Definition
	Floor Area Definition
	Floor Area Gross Definition
	Floor Area Ratio Definition
	Garage Definition
	Habitable Space Definition

	Albertville Standards
	Albertville Lot Standards
	Albertville Design Standards

	Corcoran Standards
	Corcoran Lot Standards
	Corcoran Design Standards

	Medina - Hamel Standards
	Medina - Hamel Lot Standards
	Medina - Hamel Design Standards

	Orono Standards
	Orono Lot Standards
	Orono Design Standards

	Rockford Standards
	Rockford Lot Standards
	Rockford Design Standards

	Rogers Standards
	Rogers Lot Standards
	Rogers Design Standards

	St. Michael Standards
	St. Michael Lot Standardsdocx
	St. Michael Design Standards


	Two Story Homes
	Boman Letter
	City of Hanover Building requirements letter to council and stafff
	1044 Emerald Street outside photo

	Michelle's Info on Two Story Homes.pdf
	Sheet1


